
West Devon Development 
Management and Licensing 
Committee

Title: Agenda
Date: Tuesday, 14th August, 2018

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Sanders
Vice Chairman Cllr Roberts

Members: Cllr Baldwin
Cllr Cann OBE
Cllr Hockridge
Cllr Mott

Cllr Moyse
Cllr Parker
Cllr Pearce
Cllr Yelland

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Committee 
administrator:

Kathy Trant  Specialist - Democratic Services 01803 861185



Page No

1.  Apologies for Absence 

2.  Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal or disclosable pecuniary 
interests, including the nature and extent of such interests they may have 
in any items to be considered at this meeting.

[If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination, bias or 
interests in items on this Agenda, then please contact the Monitoring 
Officer in advance of the meeting] 

3.  Items Requiring Urgent Attention
To consider those items which, in the opinion of the Chairman, 
should be considered by the Meeting as matters of urgency (if 
any).  

4.  Confirmation of Minutes
Meeting held on 19 June 2018

1 - 6

5.  Planning Applications 7 - 16

To see Letters of Representation and further supplementary 
information relating to any of the planning applications on the 
agenda, please select the following link and enter the relevant 
Reference number: http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding

0978/18/OPA     Land west of Cannon Barn Cottages, 
Lewdown, EX20 4BT. Outline application (all matters             
reserved) for 1no. Live/work unit                           
                           

6.  Planning Appeals Update 17 - 18

7.  Amendment to the  Public Participation Scheme for 
Development Management 

19 - 24

http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding


At a Meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & LICENSING 
COMMITTEE held at the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy 
Park, Drake Road, TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 19th day of JUNE 
2018 at 11.00am 

 
Present:   Cllr P R Sanders – Chairman 
    Cllr A Roberts – Vice-Chairman 
     
   Cllr W G Cann OBE  Cllr J Evans  
   Cllr L J G Hockridge  Cllr B Lamb 

Cllr C Mott   Cllr G Parker 
Cllr T G Pearce  Cllr J Yelland 

    
   COP Lead Development Management (PW) 
   Planning Specialist (MJ) 
   Solicitor (SN) 
   DCC Highways Officer (PT) 
   Senior Specialist Affordable Housing (AR) 
   Specialist Assets (RJ) 

Specialist Democratic Services (KT) 
 

 
*DM&L 01 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr R E Baldwin for whom 
Cllr B Lamb substituted and Cllr D E Moyse for whom Cllr J Evans 
substituted. 

 
*DM&L 02 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered and the following were made: 

 
Cllr J Evans declared a Personal Interest in application 2424/17/OPA:  
Outline application with some matters reserved for erection of 13 
dwellings (9 open market and 4 affordable) and access road – 
Development site at SX 447 766, East of Summer Green, Lamerton by 
virtue of having taken part in the debate and vote on this item at the 
Parish Council meeting and there could therefore be a perception that 
she had predetermined the application.  Cllr Evans remained in the 
meeting for the duration of this item but took no part in the debate or vote 
on this application;  

 
Cllr C Mott declared a Personal Interest in application 2472/17/OPA:  
Outline application with some matters reserved for residential 
development of up to 24 dwellings and associated works – Development 
site at SX 511 893, Town Meadow, Bridestowe by virtue of being present 
during the debate and vote on this item at the Parish Council meeting 
but taking no part.  Cllr Mott remained in the meeting for the duration of 
this item and took part in the debate and vote on this application;  
 
Cllr T G Pearce, Cllr J Yelland, Cllr G Parker and Cllr P R Sanders each 
declared a personal interest in application 2424/17/OPA:  Outline 
application with some matters reserved for erection of 13 dwellings (9 
open market and 4 affordable) and access road – Development site at 
SX 447 766, East of Summer Green, Lamerton by virtue of having 
received correspondence related to the application;  



Cllr T G Pearce declared a personal interest in all applications by virtue 
of being a Member of the Devon Building Control Partnership.  He 
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote on each 
item. 

 
*DM&L 03 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing Committee 
Meeting held on 15 May 2018 were confirmed and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.  

 
 
*DM&L 04 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 
The Committee considered the applications prepared by the 
Development Management Specialists and considered also the 
comments of Town and Parish Councils together with other 
representations received, which were listed within the presented agenda 
reports and summarised below, and RESOLVED: 

 
(a) Application No:  1549/18/FUL  Ward:  Exbourne 

 
Site Address: Land west of High Street, known as Batheway Fields, 

North Tawton 
  
Full planning application for 65 residential dwellings with 
associated roads, footpaths, parking, landscaping and drainage 
(resubmission of 3836/16/FUL) 
 
Case Officer Update:   None 
 
Speakers included: Supporter – Mr Jamie Grant; Parish Council 
representative – Cllr Jean Trewitt; local Ward Member – Cllr Louise 
Watts  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   To delegate authority to the COP Lead 
Development Management, in consultation with the Chairman, to 
conditionally grant planning permission, subject to a s106 legal 
obligation 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   To delegate authority to the COP Lead 
Development Management, in consultation with the Chairman, to 
conditionally grant planning permission, subject to a s106 legal 
obligation 

 
NB:  The application was approved by virtue of a Chairman’s casting 
vote 

 
 

(b) Application No:  2472/17/OPA  Ward:  Bridestowe 
 

Site Address: Development site at SX 511893, Town Meadow, 
Bridestowe  

 
Outline application with some matters reserved for residential 
development of up to 24 dwellings and associated works 



   
Case officer Update:  The application had been presented to a 
previous DM&L Committee meeting (20 March 2018) but was deferred 
for further information in respect of concerns over localised flooding on 
site; there was an error in the report within the section Planning 
Obligations and a slide was presented that showed the corrections. 

 
Speakers included: Objector – Mr Alistair Hodgson; Supporter – Mr 
Alister King-Smith; Parish Council Representative - Cllr Thirtle; local 
Ward Members: Cllrs Caroline Mott and John Hockridge  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Delegate authority to COP Lead DM in 
consultation with the Chairman to conditionally grant planning 
permission, subject to a s106 legal obligation 
 
However, in the event that the s106 legal agreement remains unsigned 
six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by the 
COP Lead DM, in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee, and 
if no progress is being made delegated authority is given to the COP 
Lead to refuse the application in the absence of an agreed s106. 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Delegate authority to COP Lead DM in 
consultation with the Chairman to conditionally grant planning 
permission, subject to a s106 legal obligation 
 
However, in the event that the s106 legal agreement remains unsigned 
six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by the 
COP Lead DM, in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee, and 
if no progress is being made delegated authority is given to the COP 
Lead to refuse the application in the absence of an agreed s106. 
  
 
(c) Application No:  0878/18/FUL  Ward:  Exbourne 

 
Site Address: Hayfield House, Hayfield Road, Exbourne  
 
Erection of 2 storey, 3 bedroom house, detached single storey 
store/workshop/office building and provision of two car parking 
spaces 

   
Case officer Update:  None 

 
Speakers included: Objector – Mr Roderick Stewart; Supporter – Mr 
John Wilde; Parish Council Representative - Cllr Adam Hedley;  local 
Ward Member: Cllr Louise Watts 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional Approval 

 
During discussion, some Members raised concerns over the impact of 
the proposal on neighbour amenity, and the right of residents to peaceful 
enjoyment of their gardens.  Members were also concerned over the 
scale of the proposal within a garden site.  Members also took account 
of the proposal being within a Conservation Area, and the parish council 
comments objecting to the application. 
 



COMMITTEE DECISION:   Refusal 
 
Reasons: 
 
1. By reason of its scale and design, the proposal presents an 
incongruous visual impact at odds with the character of the street scene 
which fails to preserve the character and appearance of Exbourne 
Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore in conflict with West Devon 
Development Plan policies SP1, SP17, SP18, SP20, BE1 and H28, and 
paragraphs 8, 14, 17, 58, 60, 61, 64, 134 and 135 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 
 
2. By reason of overlooking, over dominance and loss of light, the 
proposed development will have an unacceptable detrimental impact 
upon the residential amenity of neighbouring dwellings and inhibit the 
quiet and peaceful enjoyment of neighbouring garden areas. The 
proposal is therefore at odds with West Devon Development Plan 
policies SP1 and H28 and paragraphs 17, 58 and 61 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
(d) Application No:  2424/17/OPA  Ward:  Lamerton 

 
Site Address: Development site at SX 447 766, East of Summer 

Lane, Lamerton  
 
Outline application with some matters reserved for erection of 13 
dwellings (9 open market and 4 affordable) and access road 

   
Case officer Update:  There was an error in the report as the 
application included access and layout, not just access as stated in the 
report. 

 
Speakers included: Objector – Mrs Walton-Waters (statement read); 
Supporter – Mr Ed Persse; Parish Council Representative - Cllr John 
Edgar;  local Ward Member: Cllr Baldwin (statement read) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Delegate authority to COP Lead DM in 
consultation with the Chairman to conditionally grant planning 
permission, subject to a s106 legal obligation 
 
However, in the event that the s106 legal agreement remains unsigned 
six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by the 
COP Lead DM, in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee, and 
if no progress is being made delegated authority is given to the COP 
Lead to refuse the application in the absence of an agreed s106. 

 
During discussion, Members noted that existing development in the 
village was in linear form and felt that this application, by reason of it’s 
‘back fill’ design, departed from existing character and represented 
development in the countryside.  Members also felt that there were few 
services in the village and, due to the distance to services and the unsafe 
highways environment for pedestrians, did not feel that the application 
demonstrated sustainable development.   



Members took account of the comments of the local Ward Member who 
had considered the application in the context of the emerging JLP. 
 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Refusal 
 
Reasons: 
 
1. By reason of its scale, location and the layout design, the proposal 
represents an incongruous incursion into the landscape which is back 
fill development which fails to respond to the character of the street 
scene and sets an undesirable pattern of development. The proposal is 
therefore in conflict with West Devon Development Plan policies SP1, 
SP5, SP17, SP20, SP24, NE10 and H31, and paragraphs 8, 14, 17, 
58, 60 and 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
2. By reason of the inaccessibly of the site through the distance to 
services, absence of pedestrian footways, speed of passing vehicles 
and subsequently hostile highways environment, the proposed 
development would not be accessible to all and would lead to a 
dependence on unsustainable transport forms. The proposal is 
therefore in conflict with West Devon Development Plan policies SP1, 
SP5, SP14 and T5 and paragraphs 8, 14, 17, 32, 34, 35 and 58 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
(e) Application No:  4426/17/FUL  Ward:  Tavistock 

 
Site Address: Land adjacent to 24 Glanville Road, Tavistock  
 
Application for demolition of western boundary wall(s) and erection 
of 4no. dwellings (two pairs of semi detached dwellings) 

   
Case officer Update:  None  

 
Speakers included: Objector – Mrs Caroline Whitehead; Supporter – Mr 
Damon Pearce. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional Approval 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Conditional Approval 

 
 
*DM&L 05 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

The Committee received and noted the updated list of Planning Appeals 
including Enforcement Appeals. 
 

 
 

(The Meeting terminated at 17.10 pm) 
 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

 





PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT  
 
Case Officer:   Clare Stewart                  Parish:  Marystow   Ward:  Bridestowe 
 
Application No:  0978/18/OPA 
 

 

Agent/Applicant: 
Mrs Gill Makin 
Round House 
Cookbury 
Holsworthy 
EX22 7YG 
 
 

Applicant: 
Mr Heath Weymouth 
1 Cannon Barn Cottages 
Lewdown 
EX20 4BT 
 

Site Address:    Land West of Cannon Barn Cottages, Lewdown, EX20 4BT 
 
Development:  Outline application (all matters reserved) for 1no. live/work unit 
 
Reason item is being put before Committee: On request of Ward Councillor Mott to enable the 
Committee to consider whether the economic benefit of live/work unit in this location outweighs the 
landscape impact, having regard to any changes in planning guidance since the previously dismissed 
appeal for a similar development on this site. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Recommendation: Refusal 
 
Reasons for refusal  
 

1. The proposed development would erode the rural setting of the village and interrupt long 
public landscape views by reason of its amalgamation of the built form into more continuous 
ribbon development. This development could also cause it to be difficult to resist similar 
development in this area which would further exacerbate this harm to the open character and 
appearance of the landscape. This landscape/environmental harm demonstrably outweighs 
the positive benefits of the provision of a single live/work unit. The proposed development is 
therefore contrary to National Planning Policy Framework (notably but not limited to paragraph 
11); Strategic Policy 17 of the LDF Core Strategy; Policies NE10 and  ED16 of the WDBC 
Local Plan Review; and Policy TTV31 of the emerging Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan. 

 
 
Key issues for consideration: 
 
Principle of development, with an earlier appeal decision on the same site being a significant material 
consideration. 
 

 
Site Description: 
 
The site is located on the north side of the old A30 highway to the west of the village of Lewdown, 
outside the established village settlement boundary. The old A30 was built at an elevated grade, 
which falls away to the north. The boundaries of the site are delineated by Devon Hedgerows along 
the northern, western and southern boundaries of the site. There is an existing vehicular access onto 
the site whilst alongside the highway is a metalled footpath and wide grass verge.  
 
1 Cannon Barn Cottages is currently within the same land ownership and lies to the east of the 
application site. Outside of the defined settlement of Lewdown there is significant sporadic 
development alongside the old A30, particularly along the northern side of the road, immediately to 
the west of the village. 
 
 
The Proposal: 
 
Permission is sought in Outline with all matters reserved for the provision of a live/work unit. It is 
stated the Applicant would utilise the ‘work’ element as a podiatry clinic to enable expansion of their 
existing business, which they are currently operating from 1 Cannon Barn Cottages. 
 
The Application contends the site should be considered as brownfield land, on the basis that is 
currently a residential garden outside a built up area. 
 
Consultations: 
 

• County Highways Authority – Standing Advice    
 

• Drainage – Refer to guidance   
 

• Landscape Specialist – Objection –  
“This site was the subject of an appeal in 2015, which considered the impact of a single dwelling 
and live/work unit in this location.  As the same principle of development is being considered in 
this application, the comments of the inspector are relevant and discussed below: 
 



In relation to landscape and visual impacts, the inspector considered that the site was physically 
annexed from the built form of the village by other open areas and that the degree of openness 
around the site and nearby properties gave them an open countryside appearance. It was also 
noted that this location was prominent in long landscape views from the north and, as a 
consequence, any additional houses within the undeveloped spaces would result in a ribbon 
pattern of development that would erode the open character at this location to the detriment of the 
rural setting of the village.  
 
The inspector concluded that such an effect would result in clear and unacceptable environmental 
harm by consolidating the existing scattered pattern of development leading to an urbanising 
effect, and would not accord with the landscape conservation aims of the adopted local plan 
policy.  The inspector also raised concerns about this particular development plot setting a 
precedent for further harmful ribbon development along the A30 eroding the open countryside 
setting to the village.   
 
The current application does not represent any change in terms of landscape and visual impact, 
and consequently the position in respect of landscape harm is considered to be as before.  The 
policy principles remain the same, with adopted Core Strategy Policy SP17 requiring that: The 
quality, character, diversity and local distinctiveness of the natural and historic environment will be 
conserved and enhanced.  Emerging Joint Local Plan Policy DEV24 contains the same principle 
objective.  
 
For that reason I would raise an objection to the application on landscape grounds, considering 
that it fails adopted and emerging landscape policies.  
 
If you, or members of the planning committee were minded to weigh against this objection in the 
planning balance, please ensure that full details of hard and soft landscaping, landscape 
maintenance, boundary treatments, and materials are conditioned to ensure that we have a full 
suite of detail to consider at Reserved Matters stage, in order to secure the highest possible 
quality of built form in this prominent rural location.”   

 

• Marystow Parish Council – Support  
 
 
Representations: 
 
One letter of objection has been received, with concerns raised summarised as follows: 
 

• Detrimental impact on appearance of area 

• Significant precedent for future applications 

• Expansion of business not sufficient reason to allow harm 

• Impact on private views from neighbouring property  
 
Relevant Planning History 
 

• 00107/2015: Erection of single dwelling to include Podiatory Clinic parking and amenity space. 
Land Adjacent To Cannon Barn Cottages Lewdown Devon. Refusal: 07 Apr 15 

 
It should be noted that residential use of the site in association with 1 Cannon Barn Cottages has 
never been authorised. 
 
Also of relevance: 

 
• 00663/2014. Change of use of studio building to podiatry clinic. 1 Cannon Barn Cottages, 

Lewdown. Conditional approval: 29 Jul 14 

 



 
ANALYSIS 
 
Principle of Development/Sustainability: 
 
Background 
 
A previous application for a dwelling and podiatry clinic on the land was refused by the Council in 
2015 on the following grounds: 
 

1. Planning consent is sought for residential development on an unallocated Greenfield site. if 
permitted this would result in a new isolated home in the open countryside where no special 
circumstances have been forwarded by the applicant to justify the proposal, and so the 
proposal doe no satisfy the aims of paragraph 55 of the NPPF, Policy 31 of the WDBC Local 
Plan Review and Strategic Policy 5 of the Core Strategy. 
 

2. Outside of the defined settlement limits of Lewdown there is significant sporadic development 
alongside the old A30, particularly along the northern side of the road, immediately to the west 
of the village. There are concerns that development on the application site will set a precedent 
for the development of other gap sites along the old A30 which would be difficult to resist and 
would consolidate ribbon development alongside the old A30 to the detriment of the open 
character and appearance of the area. As such the proposed new dwelling would detract from 
the open character of the landscape contrary to Policy NE10 of the WDBC Local Plan Review 
and SP17 of the LDF Core Strategy. 

 
A subsequent appeal was dismissed. The Inspector identified the main issue to be whether the 
proposal would result in a sustainable form of development having regard to the Development Plan 
and the NPPF. They noted that the site is well related for access to facilities within Lewdon itself. 
They attached limited weight to live/work dimension to the proposal in the absence of suitable 
evidence to demonstrate that this could not conceivably be carried out on any other suitable premises 
in the locality. The decision goes on to state: 
 
“The site is an undeveloped area between existing houses located along the Old A30. Although these 
properties and the site lie at the approach to Lewdown, they are physically annexed from the built 
form of the village by other open areas and the degree of openness around them gives them an open 
countryside appearance. I noticed at my site inspection that these properties were also prominent in 
long landscape views from the north and, as a consequence, any additional houses within the 
undeveloped spaces would result in a ribbon pattern of development that would erode the open 
character at this location to the detriment of the rural setting of the village. Such an effect would not 
accord with the landscape conservation aims of Policy NE10 and would result in the dwelling being 
isolated for the purposes of paragraph 55. 
 
Moreover, the provision of an additional dwelling at this location could be repeated a number of times 
at other gaps along the Old A30, notwithstanding that some historic ribbon development is a 
characteristic of the area. Although each case is to be considered on its own merits, I am concerned 
that such a pattern of development, as would be difficult to resist should the appeal be allowed, would 
cumulatively erode the openness of the countryside setting to the village. It appears that the Inspector 
in the North Tawton appeal cited by the appellants did not have concerns about the risk of precedent 
thereby reducing the parallels between that case and this appeal. 
 
Therefore, whilst the proposal would contribute towards economic and social vitality of Lewdown it 
would lead to clear and unacceptable environmental harm by consolidating the existing scattered 
pattern of development leading to an urbanising effect. I find that such harm would outweigh the 
limited benefits and would not therefore result in a sustainable development for the purposes of the 
Framework, when considered as a whole.” 

 



In their supporting statement for the current application, the Agent has drawn attention to a recent 
High Court decision regarding the meaning is the word “isolated” for the purposes of the NPPF. In 
essence it should be given its ordinary meaning of being “far away” from other places or buildings. On 
this this basis a dwelling on the site would not in the Agent’s view be considered “isolated” having 
regard to the proximity to Lewdown, and would help maintain the vitality of this rural community.  
 
The Agent has also drawn attention to an appeal decision in North Tawton 
(APP/Q1153/A/13/2196454), but this is actually the same decision referred to in the appeal decision 
on the site subject of this application (which did not in the Inspector’s view raise the same issue of 
precedent). The supporting statement also refers to a number of other more recent approvals within 
the Lewdown area – each case needs to be considered on its own merits and the appeal decision 
relating to the site subject of this application carries significant weight.  
 
Current policy position 
 
At the present time the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of housing. Current 
adopted policies are dated and the emerging policies of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan (JLP) do not carry full weight.  
 
Paragraph 11 (as revised July 2018) of the NPPF states: 
 
“Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development… 

For decision-taking this means: 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay; 
or  
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for 
determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:  
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed6; or  
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.”  
 
The “tilted balance” described in paragraph 11 of the NPPF (previously paragraph 14) needs to be 
applied in this case. 
 
Paragraph 78 of the NPPF states: “To promote sustainable development in rural areas, housing 
should be located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities. Planning policies 
should identify opportunities for villages to grow and thrive, especially where this will support local 
services. Where there are groups of smaller settlements, development in one village may support 
services in a village nearby.” Paragraph 79 goes on to state that new “isolated” countryside homes 
should be avoided unless there are special circumstances. 
 
Lewdown has been identified as a sustainable village within the emerging JLP. Policy TTV31 
(Development in the countryside) states: “Housing and employment development adjoining or very 
near to an existing settlement will only be supported where it meets the essential, small scale local 
development needs of the community and provides a sustainable solution.” 
 
Policy NE10 of the WDBC Local Plan Review includes: 
 
“Development within the countryside outside settlement limits or not otherwise in accordance with 
policies or allocations in the Plan will not be permitted unless: 
(i) It provides an overriding economic or community benefit and cannot be reasonably located within 
an existing settlement; 



(ii) It does not cause unacceptable harm to the distinctive landscape character of the area and the 
important natural and made features that contribute to that character including views;” 
 
Policy ED16 of the WDBC Local Plan Review states: 
 
“The development of employment generating enterprises will be permitted in or adjacent to rural 
settlements where: 
(i) The size of the enterprise will be of a scale appropriate to the size of the settlement; 
And there is no significant adverse impact on any of the following: 
(ii) The rural character and appearance of the site, the settlement, its setting and the surrounding 
countryside; 
(iii) Wildlife, landscape or historic interests; 
(iv) The amenities of nearby residents or other land uses; and 
(v) Travel, access and highway safety.” 
 
Strategic Policy 17 of the Core Strategy also seeks to avoid harm to distinctive landscape character 
areas. 
 
Principle of residential/employment development 
 
The site is accessible to the facilities within Lewdown, which could realistically be reached on foot. 
The provision of a live/work unit in this location would make a contribution to the vitality of Lewdown 
as a sustainable settlement. 
 
The previous appeal decision on this site considered that the environmental harm outweighed the 
above positive benefits of the proposal. Regardless of whether or not a live/work unit on the site 
would be considered “isolated” within the meaning of paragraph 79 of the NPPF, it would still result in 
a ribbon pattern of development that would erode the open character of the countryside in this 
location through the amalgamation of the built form along this section of road and the consequential 
interruption to long public views from the north and looking north from West Devon Drive. The 
cumulative effect of further developments coming forward also remains a concern. This remains 
contrary to the adopted Development Plan and also the emerging JLP. The Council’s Landscape 
Specialist has objected to the current application on the basis that the previous position remains 
unchanged (with the emerging JLP policies containing the same principle objective as adopted Core 
Strategy Policy SP17. This weighs heavily against the application in the planning balance. 
 
The Agent has suggested the site should be considered to be brownfield land on the basis that it is 
residential garden outside a built up area (having regard to a High Court Case - Dartford Borough 
Council v Secretary of State for Communities & Local Government (CO/4129/2015)). Paragraph 111 
of the NPPF encourages the re-use of previously developed (brownfield) sites. The Committee report 
in respect of the previously refused application on this site notes that its use as a domestic garden is 
not authorised, and a Lawful Development Certificate application to establish this as a lawful use has 
not subsequently been submitted. It is therefore considered this argument does not carries extremely 
limited weight. However, even were it garden and therefore previously developed land, this does not 
give an automatic green light to development. The NPPF’s encouragement of the use of PDL is to 
direct appropriate development towards brownfield land before greenfield as a preference, it is not to 
justify otherwise inappropriate development simply because it is on PDL.  
 
 
The submission also includes information about the business case for the ‘work’ element proposed. 
The Applicant operates a podiatry clinic from an outbuilding at 1 Cannon Barn Cottages (see planning 
history section above). There are presently approximately 380 patients on the records with 
approximately 10-15 new patients registering each month. It is understood referrals come from 
surgeries in Lifton, Okehampton, Hatherleigh and Chagford. The Applicant considers the business is 
therefore expanding beyond its current site and new premises are required. Some consideration of 
alternative sites has been provided within the application, focusing on the financial cost of alternative 



sites/premises and advising that these unaffordable for the Applicant. The above needs to be weighed 
in the “tilted balance”, and it should be noted that the Inspector did not assess the business case for 
the development in considering the previous appeal as no details were presented at the time. The 
business case now being put forward therefore constitutes a material change in circumstances and 
should be considered accordingly, but still needs to be balanced against the landscape harm 
identified above. It should also be remembered that the proposal is for an additional residential unit 
alongside enhanced business facilities, not just for the business facilities alone. 
 
The Agent has drawn attention to a number of more recent planning decisions within West Devon 
which they are argue demonstrate the principle of development on this site should be supported. 
Whilst each case must be considered on its own merits (and material considerations will be weighted 
differently in different cases), the following observations can be made in respect of the cases cited: 
 
3363/17/FUL – single dwelling at Homeleigh, Chillaton – the site is just outside Chillaton, which has 
been identified as a sustainable settlement within the emerging JLP. The Officer report notes the site 
is well hidden from public view and no harmful landscape impact on landscape character was 
identified. As clear landscape harm has been identified in respect of the application subject of this 
report, the considerations are different. 
 
2592/16/FUL – single dwelling at Braemer House, Chillaton – the site is just outside the Chillaton 
Settlement Boundary and was viewed as an infill plot. No landscape harm was identified, and as such 
the consideration was different to the case subject of this report which is not considered to constitute 
an infill site. 
 
0147/17/OPA – 22 dwellings on site at Abbey Meadows Crapstone – allowed on appeal, the Inspector 
found that no adverse impacts significantly and demonstrably outweighed the benefits which included 
the provision of 40% affordable housing which was given “substantial weight”. 
 
2323/16/OPA – 20 dwellings on land south of North Road Lifton – allowed on appeal, the Inspector 
considered the proposal would not result in harm to the character of the area. 
 
2568/17/OPA – single dwelling on land at Rushford Cottage Lamerton – it was considered the 
proposal would read as an infill within the settlement, which is not the case with the application 
subject of this report. 
 
3244/16/OPA – 5 dwellings on land at Ashton Court Lamerton – this was again considered as an infill 
site with surrounding countryside character being conserved. Landscape harm has been identified 
with the current application so the balance of considerations differs. 
 
2242/17/OPA – single dwelling on land previously St Johns, Lamerton – no planning harm was 
identified having regard to the local context of Lamerton (which is generally devoid of footway 
provision). The balance of considerations is therefore entirely different to the current proposal. 
 
1462/17/OPA – 5 dwellings on land at Kooshti Bok Lamerton – considered to be infill to the built 
environment with the character of the surrounding countryside being conserved, which is materially 
different to the proposal subject of this report. 
 
4161/16/OPA – 4 dwellings on land opposite Springfield Park Bridestow –  Site was considered to be 
well related to existing development within the village, with the rural fringe character being broadly 
conserved. Again this differs from the proposal subject of this report where landscape harm has been 
identified.  
 
2472/17 – 24 dwellings at Town Meadow, Bridestow approve – Committee resolution to approve 
subject to completion of Section 106 Agreement. 
 



The Agent has also provided comments on the consultation response from the Landscape Specialist, 
which are available to view on the Council’s website. These include a query on whether the 
Landscape Specialist has considered that “The siting of the dwelling could be angled and sunken into 
the land which would have no impact or harm to the surrounding landscape.” The application has 
been submitted in outline with all matters reserved, and on this basis the LPA are not satisfied that it 
has been adequately demonstrated that the development could be achieved without causing harm to 
the landscape.  
 
Design: 
 
Detailed design matters would be considered at the Reserved Matters stage. It can be noted that the 
previous refusal was a full application and detailed design was not a reason for refusal. 
 
Drainage: 
 
The size and topography of the site would allow for drainage matters to be appropriately dealt with at 
Reserved Matters stage. 
 
Ecology: 
 
The site area did not trigger the need for a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal as a validation 
requirement. 
 
Neighbour Amenity: 
 
There would be sufficient separation between the proposed live/work unit and existing nearby 
properties to achieve satisfactory levels of privacy.  
 
Highways/Access: 
 
The current application has been submitted with all matters reserved (including access). It is noted 
the site benefits from an existing field gate which could be utilised. Further details would need to be 
considered as part of any Reserved Matters application.  
 
Other Matters: 
 
Impact on private views – this is not a material planning consideration. 
 
The Planning Balance: 
 
The proposed development would make a modest positive contribution to the vitality of the adjacent 
settlement of Lewdown. Whilst attention has been drawn to the recent High Court case concerning 
the definition of “isolated” within paragraph 55 (now 79) of the NPPF, although the LPA agrees that 
the site is not isolated, it is considered that this issue does not fundamentally change the fact that the 
proposal would result in harm to the open character of the landscape in this location. Approval would 
still make it difficult to resist future applications for similar ribbon development that would cumulatively 
erode the openness of the countryside, which the Inspector in the previous appeal on this identified as 
a legitimate and significant concern. 
 
Whilst a business case have been provided with the current application, it is not considered this 
provides substantive special circumstances that outweigh the identified environmental harm as the 
economic benefit of a single live/work unit would not be significant in planning terms. Overall it is 
considered the harmful impacts of the proposal in relation to landscape character would demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits contrary to the NPPF (in particular paragraph 11), and the adopted and 
emerging Development Plan policies identified above. As such the application is recommended for 
refusal. Whilst it is acknowledged that the business case is an additional consideration from 



previously dismissed appeal scheme, Officers do not consider it carries sufficient weight to tip the 
balance in favour of the proposal.  
 
This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Planning Policy 

 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of 
the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
The relevant development plan policies are set out below: 
 

West Devon Borough Council Core Strategy 2011 
SP1 – Sustainable Development 
SP5 – Spatial Strategy 
SP7 – Strategic Distribution of Housing 
SP10 – Supporting the Growth of the Economy 
SP17 – Landscape Character 
SP21 – Flooding 
 
West Devon Borough Council Local Plan Review 2005(as amended 2011) 
NE10 – Protection of the Countryside and Other Open Spaces 
BE1 – Conservation Areas 
H31 – Residential Development in the Countryside 
ED16 – Development for Employment in the Countryside 
T9 – The Highway Network 
PS2 – Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
PS3 – Sewage Disposal 
PS4 – Private Water Supply 
 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
 
Emerging Joint Local Plan 
 

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the above as the 
statutory development plan once it is formally adopted. 
 
Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on 
determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.   
  

• For current development plan documents, due weight should be given to relevant 
policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the 
policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may 

be given).   

• For the JLP, which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined 
by the stage of its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections, 
and its degree of consistency with the Framework. 

 



The JLP is at a relatively advanced stage of preparation.   The precise weight to be given to 
policies within the JLP will need to be determined on a case by case basis, having regard to 
all of the material considerations as set out on the analysis above. 
 
PLYMOUTH AND SOUTH WEST DEVON JOINT LOCAL PLAN -: PUBLICATION 
(as considered by the Full Councils end Feb/Early March 2017) 
SPT1 Delivering sustainable development 
SPT2 Sustainable linked neighbourhoods and sustainable rural communities 
TTV1 Prioritising growth through a hierarchy of sustainable settlements 
TTV2 Delivering sustainable development in the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area 
TTV31 Development in the Countryside 
DEV1 Protecting amenity and the environment  
DEV2 Air, water, soil, noise and land 
DEV20 Place shaping and the quality of the built environment 
DEV21 Conserving the historic environment 
DEV24 Landscape character 
DEV28 Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation 
DEV30 Trees, woodlands and hedgerows 
DEV31 Specific provisions relating to transport 
DEV37 Managing flood risk and Water Quality Impacts 
 
Neighbourhood Plan 
 
N/A 
 
Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into account 
in reaching the recommendation contained in this report. 
 
 
 



 

 1 

 

 West Devon Borough Council 

 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 14-Aug-18 
 Appeals Update from 1-Jun-18 to 27-Jul-18 
 

 Ward Buckland Monachorum 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 2844/17/FUL APP/Q1153/W/18/3194430 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr & Mrs M Liesching 
 PROPOSAL : Erection of single residential dwelling with associated parking and residential amenity  
 area 
 LOCATION : Land at SX 510 668, South of Green Lane, Yelverton 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 24-April-2018 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 16-July-2018 

 APPLICATION NUMBER : 3390/17/OPA APP/Q1153/W/18/3194516 

 APPELLANT NAME: Dr & Mrs S Lloyd 
 PROPOSAL : Outline application (with some matters reserved) for erection of single detached 
 dormer style bungalow with integral garage 
 LOCATION : Tamar, 11 Moorland Court, Yelverton   

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 25-April-2018 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 18-July-2018 

 APPLICATION NUMBER : 4005/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3180733 

 APPELLANT NAME: Sol Komfort, Lubricants SW, Valves Online 
 PROPOSAL : Three business units, 960sqm (1x384sqm 2x288sqm (576sqm) Use Class B1 
 (c) light industrial / Use Class B2 (general industrial) / Use ClassB8 Storage &  
 Distribution), together with associated access, parking and landscaping. 
 LOCATION : Land Adjacent To Yelverton Business Park, Crapstone    
 PL20 7LS 
 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 31-October-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 26-June-2018 

 APPLICATION NUMBER : 4006/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3180732 

 APPELLANT NAME: The Trustees of the Compton meeting Hall 
 PROPOSAL : Meeting hall (152sqm – for Plymouth Brethren Christian Church) and associated 
 access parking and landscaping. 
 LOCATION : Land Adjacent To Yelverton Business Park, Crapstone    
 PL207LS 
 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 31-October-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 29-June-2018 

 Ward Exbourne 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 3836/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3189494 

 APPELLANT NAME: Wainhomes (South West) Holdings Ltd 
 PROPOSAL : Full planning application for 100 residential dwellings with associated roads, footways,  
 parking, landscaping and drainage 
 LOCATION : Land West Of High Street Known as Batheway Fields North Tawton Devon  EX20 2FN 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Withdrawn 

 APPEAL START DATE: 19-December-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Withdrawn 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 25-June-2018 

 Ward Milton Ford 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 2439/17/HHO APP/Q1153/W/17/3188910 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Richard White 
 PROPOSAL : Householder application to widen the original gate entrance opposite Woodbine Cottage 
 to allow vehicular access 
 



 

 1 

 LOCATION : Woodbine Cottage, Sydenham Damerel, PL19 8PU 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 17-April-2018 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 15-June-2018 

 Ward Tavistock North 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 1214/17/CLE APP/Q1153/X/18/3194759 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr D Brittan 
 PROPOSAL : Certificate of lawful development for existing use of land for storage and distribution of  
 motor vehicles and agricultural purposes 
 LOCATION : Land At Higher Wilminstone, Road Past Wilminstone Farm, Wilminstone, PL19 0JT 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 26-February-2018 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 04-June-2018 

 APPLICATION NUMBER : 1409/18/TPO APP/TPO/Q1153/6844 

 APPELLANT NAME: Donna Carpenter 
 PROPOSAL : T1: Sycamore - Fell, dropping branches into garden (see photo) preventing children  
 playing in garden, part of tree overhangs highway. 
 LOCATION : 14 Tremayne Rise, Tavistock, PL19 8RD 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 28-June-2018 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 

 APPLICATION NUMBER : 1770/17/PDM APP/Q1153/W/18/3194203 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr T Faircloth 
 PROPOSAL : Prior approval for proposed change of use of agricultural building to 2no. dwellinghouses 
 (Class C3) and for associated operational development (Class Q(a+b)) 
 LOCATION : Higher Wilminstone Farm, Wilminstone, PL19 0JT 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 23-April-2018 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 09-July-2018 

 APPLICATION NUMBER : 1950/17/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3192016 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr & Mrs L Roddy 
 PROPOSAL : Demolition of existing garage and outbuilding and erection of dwelling 

 LOCATION : 118 Old Exeter Road, Tavistock, PL19 0JB 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 23-April-2018 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 13-July-2018 

 APPLICATION NUMBER : 3896/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/18/3198937 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr & Mrs M Cole 
 PROPOSAL : Change of use from agriculture to residential, construction of 2 4-bedroom houses 
 with associated installations 
 LOCATION : Land adjoining 123 Old Exeter Road, Tavistock    

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 25-April-2018 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 16-July-2018 

 Ward Tavistock South West 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 0971/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3173805 

 APPELLANT NAME: Harding & Sons Ltd 
 PROPOSAL : Change of use from Class B8 (Storage & Distribution) to Class A1 (Retail) with ancillary 
 pet grooming and vet services; external alterations to building and site layout including 
 car parking amendments; and creation of 2no. customer entrances; and associated works. 
 LOCATION : Unit 8, Plymouth Road Industrial Estate, Tavistock, PL19 9QN 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 05-July-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld (Conditional approval) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 16-July-2018 



Report to: Development Management and Licensing 

Committee 

Date: 14 August 2018 

Title: AMENDMENTS TO THE PUBLIC 

PARTICIPATION SCHEME FOR 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

Portfolio Area: Support Services 

Wards Affected: All 

 

Urgent Decision: N Approval and 
clearance obtained: 

Y 

Date next steps can be taken: 
 

After Council 25 
September 2018 

  

Author: Kathryn Trant 

Specialist – Democratic 

Services 

  

Contact: kathryn.trant@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Committee RECOMMENDS to Council that the 

proposed amendments to the Development Management 
and Licensing Committee Public Participation Scheme be 

approved, as set out in Appendix 1. 

1. Executive summary  
 

1.1 This report seeks to make amendments to the Public Participation 
Scheme for Development Management, in light of General Data 
Protection Regulations. 

 

2. Background  
 

2.1 Members will be aware of the new Data Protection Regulations that 
came into effect from 25 May 2018. 

 
 



2.2 As a result of the new regulations, the Council is reviewing how it uses 
personal data.  One of the areas where people are identified is in the 
published minutes of Development Management and Licensing 
Committee meetings, where registered speakers are listed. 

 
2.3 Officers are of the view that registered speakers should be named in the 

minutes, however, the current public participation scheme does not 
clearly advise the public that names of speakers will be published.   

 
2.4 To ensure the Council complies with processing data lawfully, fairly and 

in a transparent manner, the public participation scheme should be 
amended so that members of the public who are considering putting 
themselves forward as speakers are aware that their names will be 
published in the minutes and therefore in the public domain.  They 
should also be informed that the Council is likely to archive these 
records and their name will not automatically be removed from the 
record at a later date. 

 
2.5 Whilst amending the public participation scheme in light of GDPR, 

officers propose a further amendment to the scheme that reinforces the 
point to speakers that papers are not to be circulated at the meeting. 

 
2.6 The revised public participation scheme (with proposed amendments 

illustrated in red font) is set out at Appendix 1 for approval. 
 
 

3. Options available and consideration of risk  
 

3.1 The proposed amendments to the public participation scheme will firstly 
ensure that the Council follows current data protection good practice and 
remove the risk of challenge, and secondly will formalise the rule that 
papers cannot be circulated to Committee Members at the Committee 
meeting.  

 
 

4. Implications  
 

Legal/Governance 
 

 The Council has a public participation scheme that 
sets out the rules in terms of public speaking at the 
Development Management Committee. 

The Council must comply with the Data Protection 
Acts (1998 and 2018) and the GDPR. 

Financial 
 

 There are no additional financial implications 
directly related to this report  

Risk  There are no additional risks directly related to this 
report. 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 
 

Equality and 
Diversity 

 There are no equality and diversity implications 
directly related to this report. 



Safeguarding 

 

 There are no safeguarding implications directly 

related to this report. 

Community 

Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 

 There are no community safety or crime and 

disorder implications directly related to this report. 
 

Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing 

 There are no health, safety and wellbeing 
implications directly related to this report. 
 

Other 
implications 

  
N/A 

 
 

 
 

Supporting Information 
 
Appendices: 

A – Proposed Public Participation Scheme 

 





 

  August 2018 

 
WELCOME TO THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND LICENSING 

COMMITTEE OF WEST DEVON BOROUGH COUNCIL PUBLIC 
PARTICIPATION SCHEME 

 
We allow people to speak directly to the Committee, but the Council has 
introduced a scheme so that the system operates effectively and in a well 
ordered manner.  The following guidelines explain how the Committee deals 
with each item.  These guidelines only apply to applications listed on the main 
schedule in the agenda.   
 
If you wish to speak at the Committee meeting on a planning application, you 
should give notice of your intention by contacting Member Services 
member.services@swdevon.gov.uk by 12.00 noon on the Thursday before 
the Development Management and Licensing Committee.  
 
Please be aware that if you address the Committee, your name will appear in 
the published minutes. The Council is likely to archive these records and your 
name will not automatically be removed from the record at a later date. 
 
The order for each item at Committee will be as follows:- 
 
1. The Committee Chairman calls the item; 
 
2. A planning officer presents the report containing the officer 

recommendation; 
 
3.   The Committee Members are able to ask questions of clarity 
 
4. One objector may speak against the application (three minutes 

maximum). If there is more than one objector then one person must be 
chosen as a spokesperson; 

 
5. One supporter or the applicant may speak in favour of the application 

(three minutes maximum). If there is more than one supporter then one 
person must be chosen as a spokesperson; 

 
6. A representative from the relevant Parish or Town Council may speak 

(three minutes maximum); 
 
7. Member only discussion, including any further questions to officers.  

The Chairman may ask the objector or supporter to clarify a point of 
fact in very exceptional circumstances; 

 
6. Members Vote on the application. 
 
 
The three minute maximum period will be your only opportunity to speak, 
unless the Chairman asks for clarification on a point of fact (see 7 above).  
Statements must be confined to matters which are material planning 
considerations.  Comments on procedural issues should be avoided – they 
can be dealt with through the Council’s complaints procedure. 



 

  August 2018 

 
If a decision is deferred (eg for a Site Inspection), resulting in a further report 
to the Committee at a subsequent meeting, no further opportunity for public 
speaking on the same application will be allowed, but the comments 
previously made will be taken into account.   
 
However, if at the time of the original consideration of the application, there 
was no speaker in support or to object, then they will be allowed to speak 
when the application is reconsidered, provided that proper notice has been 
given. 
 
Please note, the Chairman of the Committee will not allow papers to be 
circulated at, or tabled (placed on Member's desks) prior to, the meeting.   
 
Additional photographs may be included in the Committee presentation, to be 
shown as part of the speaker’s presentation.  Please submit them 
electronically to the appropriate Planning Case Officer and to 
dm@swdevon.gov.uk by 12 noon on the Thursday prior to the Committee 
meeting.  It would be helpful to mark your email ‘Urgent:  DM Committee 
photographs for presentation – Application no: xxxx/xx/xx. 
 
 


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	5 Planning Applications
	6 Planning Appeals Update
	7 Amendment to the  Public Participation Scheme for Development Management
	Appendix A


